
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
Architectural Review Board 


Staff Analysis 
Application for Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-40 


September 22, 2016 


Applicant/Owner:  Michael Straight 


Address:   191 Culpeper Street 


GPIN:  6984-32-0072-000 


Zoning:   Residential – R-6 


Type:   Front Porch Guardrail  


Proposal:  


The applicant is seeking approval for the installation of a wrought iron guardrail within two 
spans between columns on the front porch. The applicant’s insurance agency has requested the 
guardrails where the height to the ground exceeded 36 inches along the front porch for safety. 
The applicant is proposing to match the existing wrought iron handrails leading down the sides 
of the front steps. The guardrails will be painted semi-gloss black to match the existing rails.  
 
Historic and Architectural Significance:  
 
The circa 1873 Second Empire house was build for Judge Thomas J. Semmes by John R. 
Spillman. This house is considered one of the most impressive residences of the late 19th century 
along Culpeper Street. The ornamental details on the house add to the picturesque quality of 
residential architecture in the area. The one story porch has chamfered posts, a polygonal bay 
and bracketed eaves. This is a contributing feature in the Warrenton Historic District.  
 
Zoning Ordinance Considerations:  
 
The subject property is zoned Residential (R-6). Setbacks for the handrails are not an issue. The 
application will require a building permit. Per Article 3-5.3.4.2, the proposed addition is 
considered a substantial alterations requiring Architectural Review Board approval.  
 


3. Any change or alteration of the exterior architectural style of a contributing or landmark 
structure, including removal or rebuilding of porches, openings, dormers, window sash, 
chimneys, columns, structural elements, stairways, terraces, and the like. 







 
Application for Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-40 


191 Culpeper Street - Page 2 


Historic District Guidelines Considerations: 
 


Guidelines for Existing Porches and Their Details 
 


1. The building should be recognized as a product of its period of construction in 
craftsmanship, design, texture, materials, style and historic character. Retain, protect 
and repair porches and their details including, but not limited to, steps, flooring, 
piers, columns, railing, balusters, brackets, modillions, dentils, cornice, pediments, 
ceiling, moldings and roof. 


 
9. Maintain metal or iron railings by removing rust and corrosion and keeping a 


protective coating of black paint. 
 


15. ADA access should be accomplished carefully and sympathetically to the historic 
building and not destroy the character-defining features of a front porch or entrance 
 


17. Round metal pipe railings on steps leading up to porches are a later alteration and 
inappropriate for the historic district. Consider removing and replacing them in 
keeping with the design of the porch railing and balustrade. 
 


18. Treatments to porches and their details shall recognize their craftsmanship, design, 
texture, style, historic character and period of construction. When they or any part of 
them are deteriorated beyond repair, replacement should be in kind to matching 
material and appearance. When the use of substitute materials to replace historic 
materials is proposed, a licensed professional historic architect, builder, 
architectural engineer, historic preservation consultant or architectural conservator 
shall provide a written guarantee that the new substitute product or material is the 
closest available match in texture, content, design, style and appearance. Such new 
material will need verification that it will not cause structural, physical or fabric 
harm to the historic building. Specifications and at least three studies with 
photographs showing the proven performance level and maintenance on historic 
buildings must be provided for consideration. 
 


Guidelines for Meeting Accessibility Requirements (ADA) 
 


6. Design handrails and balusters or other accessibility elements with architectural 
detailing to compliment the building and district so they become design amenities, 
instead of intrusions. 


 








 


 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 


AGENDA 


September 22, 2016 


7:00 PM 


 


1. Call to Order  


2. Determination of a Quorum 


3. Purpose of Architectural Review Board; Statement of Qualifications of Architectural Review Board 


4. Approval of Minutes – August 25, 2016  


5. New Business 


A.  Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-40: Wrought iron railing along front porch at 191 Culpeper 
Street; Michael Straight, Applicant/Owner. 


6. Work Session 


A. Preliminary Submission: Saint James Episcopal Church proposed renovations and addition at 73 
Culpeper Street; Sean Reilly, Architect.  


7. Adjourn  





		5. New Business

		A.  Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-40: Wrought iron railing along front porch at 191 Culpeper Street; Michael Straight, Applicant/Owner.

		6. Work Session

		A. Preliminary Submission: Saint James Episcopal Church proposed renovations and addition at 73 Culpeper Street; Sean Reilly, Architect.






1 
 


  
 


DRAFT MINUTES  


ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 
TOWN OF WARRENTON 


August 25, 2016 
7:00 P.M. 


The regular meeting of the Town of Warrenton Architectural Review Board (ARB) convened on 
August 25, 2016 at 7:00 PM in the Municipal Building. 


Mr. James Tucker, Vice-Chair, called the meeting to order and a quorum was determined. The 
following were present: Dr. Carole Hertz, Mr. Carter Nevill, Town Councilman Alec Burnett. Ms. 
Kelly Machen, Community Development Planner was present and represented staff. Absent were: 
Dr. Melissa Wiedenfeld, Chair and Mr. Steve Wojcik.  


Purpose Statement 


The Purpose of the Architectural Review Board is to make a decision on applications in order to 
preserve the character of the Historic District of the Town of Warrenton on behalf of the Town of 
Warrenton. Decisions of the Board are based upon the Historic Guidelines and a decision for each 
application is made based upon its own merits. Those decisions do not constitute precedence for any 
future decisions. The Historic Guidelines provide the framework for consistent decision making by 
elaborating upon the Zoning Ordinance’s goal to identify, protect and preserve the buildings within 
the Historic District boundaries. 


Approval of Minutes  


Mr. Tucker presented the minutes from the meeting of July 28, 2016 for approval.  


Mr. Nevill made a motion to approve the minutes of the previous meeting.  


Dr. Hertz seconded the motion and the motion passed. (3-0)  


Old Business  


• Amendment to Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-26: Proposed building colors for 41 
Beckham Street, Applicant Cris Bezdek, Wort Hog Brewing Company Partner.  


Cris Bezdek approached the podium to address the Board. He presented the Board with samples of 
the colors to be used at 41 Beckham Street. He said the proposed building colors are Cozy Red, 
Minwax Dark Walnut, and Ambitious Amber. Those colors will be used as follows: Cozy Red- trim 







2 
 


on top of the building; Ambitious Amber- walls and Dark Walnut-wooden timber trellises. Mr. 
Bezdek added that the new colors presented a more inviting character to the building.  


Board members queried Mr. Bezdek on issues regarding the proposed building colors for 41 
Beckham Street and Mr. Bezdek provided answers.  


Mr. Tucker asked if the sail colors would remain the same as were previously presented.  


Mr. Bezdek said no.  


Mr. Nevill said nowhere in the Historic Guidelines does it state that the ARB has purview over color 
determination. He stated he appreciated the applicant’s time to present it to the Board; it was his 
opinion that the colors are of the applicant’s choice and encouraged the applicants to proceed.  


Dr. Hertz said she agreed with Mr. Nevill.  


Mr. Tucker said he went over this at a previous meeting and it is stated in the Historic Guidelines 
that colors are to be submitted for ARB review.  


Mr. Nevill asked for someone to provide the specific Historic Guidelines referencing colors.  


Ms. Machen said that the issue of color was in the Zoning Ordinance. She said she would have to 
look up the previous meeting’s minutes regarding what Mr. Tucker went over.  


Mr. Tucker said we can resolve the issue after we resolve this application. Nevertheless, he said, the 
applicant’s sail colors are not before the ARB tonight. They came before the ARB previously and if 
the applicant wants to alter what was presented previously and approved, the applicant would have 
to come back if this Board determines that the ARB has purview over colors. He said the ARB has 
two members state they don’t believe the ARB has purview over colors, so he did not believe either 
one will make a motion to approve the application with the colors presented.  


Mr. Nevill said he would like to allow the applicant to move forward with the colors they have 
selected. The ARB determined the colors are harmonious and complimentary and they meet the 
stated style suggestions. He said he didn’t believe this needs a motion or approval to move forward, 
however, if it is the Board’s decision this should be the case, he would defer to the Chair.  


Mr. Tucker said he would like to hear a motion, that should Mr. Nevill be correct regarding colors, 
that the ARB waive review of the colors tonight and exempt the sail colors because they are not 
presented. The sail colors had been presented previously and approved. However, there is talk of 
changing the sail colors. A motion to waive the ARB review so the Board can pass judgement on 
this will satisfy everyone. 


Mr. Nevill moved to approve Amendment to Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-26: Proposed 
building colors for 41 Beckham Street as presented. The colors used for the building are Cozy Red, 
Minwax Dark Walnut, and Ambitious Amber. Pending a review of the ARB’s purview over colors 
would determine if changes made to the colors of the sails will be brought back before the Board.  


Dr. Hertz seconded the motion.  


The motion passed with all voting in favor. (3-0) 







3 
 


New Business 


• Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-36: Replacement of projecting sign at 81B Main 
Street, Melissa Hutchison, applicant.  


Mr. Tucker said he did not believe Ms. Hutchison was going to be present and there is no 
representative. He said the application is to approve a sand-blasted wood sign which had previously 
been presented to the Board as a plastic sign, denied by the Board, appealed to the Town Council, 
and the Board’s decision was upheld by the Town Council. The applicant is now reapplying for the 
wood sign and it can be presumed that what’s presented here is the same size in terms of height and 
width and the same design. He said there are no issues he is aware of and the ARB does not have 
purview over what signs say as a result of first amendment issues and signage. He added the ARB 
may have purview over the size of the sign and materials, but not necessarily colors, text, or the 
fonts of the sign.  


Ms. Kelly Machen, Community Development Planner said the Supreme Court’s decision determined 
that if one has to read a sign to regulate it, then that is considered content-based zoning, which has 
been ruled unconstitutional.   


Board members made comments on the sign to be replaced.  


Mr. Nevill made a motion to approve application for Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-36: 
Replacement of projecting sign at 81B Main Street with the following conditions: 


• A sign permit is required  
• The sign materials fit Historic Design Guidelines, as have been presented in the application. 


Dr. Hertz seconded the motion.  


The motion passed unanimously. (3-0)  


• Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-37 –Installation of a sign on an existing ground sign at 
25 Winchester Street, Kate Brandt, tenant; Dave Colleran, applicant.  


Donna Shifflett approached the podium and addressed the Board. She said she was an R.N. clinical 
director who was representing the home health agency company that has been in business since 
1984. She said one of the company’s regulations is that they have a sign that is visible. She 
presented pictures of the proposed rectangular-shaped sign to the Board.  


Board members queried Ms. Shifflett regarding issues of the sign and Ms. Shifflett provided 
answers. Several Board members made suggestions to give the sign more character to enhance the 
Historic District.  


Mr. Nevill made a motion to approve application for Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-37: 
Installation of a sign on an existing ground sign at 25 Winchester Street with the following 
conditions: 


• A building permit is acquired. 
• Design elements as suggested by this Board are added to the sign to improve it.  







4 
 


Dr. Hertz seconded the motion. 


The motion passed unanimously. (3-0)  


Work Session  


A discussion was held regarding the Board having purview over colors. Mr. Tucker said the Board 
operates under the Zoning Ordinance. He added it is the Zoning Ordinance that gives the ARB 
purview to review colors by requiring their submission.  


Mr. Nevill asked how often it comes before the Board in reference to someone painting a house or 
building.  


Mr. Tucker said it is in the Ordinance that people do not have to come before the Board to repaint. 
But, painting masonry that has not been previously painted does come before the Board.  


Mr. Nevill said as he reads the Ordinance as it is, it does not require that colors be presented. If lurid, 
contrasting colors are presented the ARB has policing authority because it violates common 
aesthetic, otherwise the ARB does not.  


Ms. Machen said there is a second part to the Zoning Ordinance regarding colors, and added she 
would need to research a little further to find that.  


Mr. Tucker said we need to find all that information and resolve the issue prior to another 
submission involving colors.  


Mr. Nevill said he agreed and added he had inquired of the Town Attorney regarding the issue and 
he is waiting for clarification.  


Ms. Machen, said there was one Administrative approval for an HVAC unit behind a residential 
building at 100 Culpeper Street, not visible from the street and screened in with vegetation.  


Mr. Tucker said he wanted to discuss the issue of not being able to see it from the street. There are 
numerous items in the Historic Guidelines, where it does not matter whether it can be seen from the 
street or not, it is still to be brought before us for review. It may not be able to be seen from the 
street, but it still should come before the Board. He added that it may be able to be seen by 
occupants of a neighboring house and it is not appropriate for the Historic District.  


Mr. Tucker made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  


Mr. Nevill seconded the motion 


The motion passed unanimously. (3-0)  


The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m.  












From: M.L. Straight
To: Kelly Machen
Subject: Application to ARB for 191 Culpepper Street
Date: Wednesday, August 31, 2016 12:58:02 PM


Ms. Machen, Thanks for your assistance today. Hopefully what follows will be what you
wanted for the application. Please let me know if you need anything else. Mike Straight Cell
703-929-3198


We recently purchased and moved into 191 Culpepper Street (8/15/16).  Our insurer, 
Nationwide, had an appraisal done and noted the lack of a handrail on the front porch 
where the height to ground exceeded 36 inches. They identified this as "important" and 
requested documentation that handrail was installed. There are two sections where the 
height exceeds 36 inches (they are adjacent and 46 inches from the ground) see photos. I 
propose installing rails and pickets of 5'8" and 4'4" to span the two distances between 
columns. The rails will be fabricated out of wrought iron to match existing rails leading 
down the sides of the front stairs see photos. I will have the work done at Triple
R Welding at 5413 Turkey Run Rd. Warrenton, Va. The wrought iron rails will be 
painted semi-gloss black to match all other rails. Thank you for your
consideration. Photos will be sent separately from my phone.



mailto:mstraight@mlstraightpainting.com

mailto:kmachen@warrentonva.gov





':, L, 


'-3o 1-'"? 


I°' ( 1:alfJfA·s/w4. 
Vl,,.,·�l6f'fai:J� 
'?D3 r<h'!/--3l'f?J 


3(;,<' fer� fok.eti� 
{�&J.. w'3�/


l °i1 wrri Y+i 


CU(-\- �o,�- '"-{o 


Plans for 2 new Railings: Layout







Plans for Railings: Side view







Front Steps







Proposed area for guardrail #1







Proposed area for guardrail #2







Existing Handrail & proposed 
guardrail design





		Application

		Application to ARB for 191 Culpepper Street

		Application






 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 


Staff Analysis  


September 22, 2016 


Applicant:  Sean E. Reilly, Kerns Group Architects, P.C. 


Owner:  St James Episcopal Church 


Address:  73 Culpeper Street 


GPIN: 6984-32-8993-000 


Zoning:  Central Business District - CBD 


Type:  Interior renovations and an addition 
 
Proposal:  
 
This is a work session to discuss a proposed addition at Saint James’ Episcopal Church. On the 
South side of the lot, the Church is looking to build an Education Wing addition. The proposed 
addition “extends the geometry of the existing eastern wing of the building.” The design includes 
a gabled porch. Stucco skin with stone at the base, bunched windows, and slate shingles at the 
sloping porch roofs. Please note the interior renovation included in the submission from the 
Church is not part of any future ARB application for a Certificate of Appropriateness.  
 
Historic and Architectural Significance:  
 
Saint James’ is a stuccoed Gothic Revival church with a crenellated corner tower. Originally 
built in 1850-1853, the church was rebuilt in 1912 by the Architect Irwin Fleming after being 
destroyed in 1910 fire. The circa 1928 Tudor Revival Style Parish Hall and school are attached 
to the rear of the church and were built by W.J. Hanback. The church is an important example of 
20th-century Gothic Revival in Warrenton and located on Culpeper Street.  
 
Zoning Ordinance Considerations:  
 
The subject property is zoned CBD. A full building, zoning, and public works and utilities 
review has not been completed at this time, but will be included as more information is available. 
Per Article 3-5.3.4.2, the proposed addition is considered a substantial alterations requiring 
Architectural Review Board approval.  
 


2. Any addition to or alteration of a structure which increases the square footage of the 
structure or otherwise alters substantially its size, height, contour, or outline. 







73 Culpeper St | Page 2 


Historic District Guidelines Considerations: 
 


Guidelines for Addition(s) to Existing Buildings 
 
The following guidelines shall be used in conjunction with the previous guidelines for 
building elements. 
 
1. The existing building will be recognized as a product of its period of construction, design, 


materials and craftsmanship.  
2. Additions will cause the least possible diminution or loss of the historic character of the 


existing building including its materials, craftsmanship, design, location and setting. 
footprint as inconspicuously as possible by setting them back from the front and side of 
the building  


3. Locate additions that increase the interior footprint as inconspicuously as possible by 
setting them back from the front and side of the building  


4. Additions should be clearly subordinate to the existing building in overall size including 
height, width, depth and scale.  


5. When increased height of a side or rear addition is desired, consider excavating deeper 
to lower it or dropping it into the terrain.  


6. Avoid raising the height of contributing buildings with additional floors.  
7. When an additional story is the only means of achieving necessary increased space, it 


should be stepped back from the lower wall plane and comply with the predominant 
height of existing neighboring buildings.  


8. Design and construct additions in such a manner that if removed in the future, the 
essential form, character and integrity of the historic property remains intact. For 
example, a small connector passage or hyphen to join a side or rear addition to the 
original building is less invasive and destroys less fabric than a full elevation connection.  


9. Recognize all buildings as products of their own time; design the new addition so that it 
can be distinguished from the original, yet be compatible with the massing, size, scale 
and architectural features. This can be subtly accomplished on a brick building by using 
a more modern stretcher course bond or varying the original pattern. A true masonry 
stuccoed frame or weatherboard frame addition would also differentiate compatibly.  


10. The style of the addition should not replicate the original but might respectfully, modestly 
reflect design elements.  


11. Unpainted, pressure-treated wood or vinyl decks are inappropriate porch additions. 
Traditional historic style painted wood porches are preferred. Expanded porches shall 
continue the original design and treatment. Should the addition be a chimney, its 
material should conform to the building’s foundation or wall surface.  


12. ROOF form of an addition should be consistent with the contributing building and 
streetscape. The roof covering should be similar to the building in texture and material.  


13. DOORS & WINDOWS - Respect the size, proportion, spacing and rhythm of existing 
door and window openings on the existing building. For example, most of the existing 
windows are vertical in proportion and are regularly spaced across the facade of 
residential buildings and the upper story of store/houses. In such cases, new construction 
should not depart substantially from these characteristics for the general pattern of 







73 Culpeper St | Page 3 


window openings, avoiding for example, horizontal strip windows, wide horizontal, 
single-pane openings or square openings.  


a. Respect the spatial relationship between the wall surface and window opening of 
the existing building.  


b. Double-hung sash and casement windows on additions should have true-divided 
lights and be composed of wood.  


14. MATERIALS - Refer to No. 9 and choose natural traditional building materials that are 
compatible with the contributing building primarily. Depending on the building and 
addition type and design, brick, stone, concrete block, cinder block, true masonry stucco, 
frame weatherboard, board and batten and vertical plank wall surfaces are acceptable 
materials. Additions to historic buildings require a higher standard than modern 
buildings outside the district or a new building construction. Never use simulated wall 
surfacing products such as EIFS, Dryvit, synthetic stone or synthetic brick, synthetic 
masonry, fiber-cement, synthetic wood, vinyl, aluminum, wood-based, composite plywood 
sidings, fiber wood or fiberglass on additions to contributing buildings. Such products 
should not be used on other architectural details on additions.  


15. Use half round metal gutters and round down spouts.  
16. Additions to historic buildings should recognize the craftsmanship, design, style, texture, 


materials, historic character and period of construction of the original building. 








AGENDA ITEM 5A 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 


CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS 2016-40 
 


September 22, 2016 
 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE 
 
I move to approve the application for Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-40 for the 
proposed guardrail at 191 Culpeper Street with the following conditions:  
 


1. A building permit is acquired.  
 
Motion to Approve/Deny By:   
 
 
Seconded By:   
 
 
For:         Against:         Abstained:  
 








X


X


X


X


X


X


XX


XXXX


X


X


X


X


X


X
X


X
X


X
X


X


X
X


X
X


X
X


X
X


X


X
X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


XX


XXX


XX


XXX


XX


XXX


XX


XX


XX


XX


XX


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


XX


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


X


E
X


IS
T


IN
G


 C
H


U
R


C
H


 &
 S


C
H


O
O


L


P
L
A


Y
G


R
O


U
N


D


E
X


IS
T


IN
G


 C
H


U
R


C
H


 A
N


D
 S


C
H


O
O


L


10


9


P
R


O
P


O
S


E
D


 A
D


D
IT


IO
N


1


2


3


4


7


7


11


5


6


11


8


8


8


9


1 NEW COVERED PORCH


EXISTING BASKET BALL COURT


2 NEW 5' WIDE SIDEWALK


MAINTAIN EXISTING PARKING


LEGEND


3 NEW 8' WIDE DROP OFF LANE


4 NEW 16' WIDE ONE WAY LANE


5 EXIT TO CITY STREET


6
REWORK EXISTING WALK FOR ADA ACCESSIBILITY


7
NEW BEECH TREES


8
EXISTING BEECH TREE TO BE REMOVED


10


EXISTING 2 CAR GARAGE TO BE EMOVED


11


SITE PLAN


September 09, 2016


Kerns Group Architects, P.C.


105 N, Maple Ave, Suite 200


Falls Church, Virginia


20' 40' 60' 80' 300' 400'


Warrenton, Virginia


100'
480'200'


Saint James' Episcopal Church & School







STONE


BASE,


ALUM. SILL


CLAD WINDOWS


METAL CAP FLASHING


PROJECTING STUCCO


CORNICE


STUCCO


METAL SCREEN WALL


PROPOSED COLOR SCHEME IS TO


MATCH EXISTING LT. TAN STUCCO W/


GREY METAL, WINDOWS & SLATE


SHINGLES.


PINNED LETTERING


SHIELD SHAPED VOID


W/ WHITE ALUM. LOGO


SLATE SHINGLES


F.O EXISTING


OVERALL MASSING


PVC CLAD WD.


POSTS


STUCCO BASES


EXISTING PORCH


EXTERIOR ELEVATION


September 09, 2016


Kerns Group Architects, P.C.


105 N, Maple Ave, Suite 200


Falls Church, Virginia


50'10' 20' 30' 40' 150' 200'


Warrenton, Virginia


100'
240'


Saint James' Episcopal Church & School







ALIGN STONE BASE


W/ TOP OF WINDOW


WELL WALL


VENT


EXT LIGHT
METAL SCREEN WALL


STUCCO


F.O. EXISTING BUILDING


STUCCO


CLAD WINDOWS


 MASORNY WALL


STEP W/ GRADE


WALK @ BUILDING


SLATE SHINGLES


PVC CLAD WD FRAMING


STONE BASE


NOTE CORNICE


CONTINUES ABOVE


PORCH ROOF


METAL SIDING


SLATE SHINGLES


STUCCO W/


SCORELINES


VOID EACH SIDE


ALIGN W/ SHIELD


SCORE JOINTS


STUCCO


DESIGN CLUE


EXTERIOR ELEVATION


September 09, 2016


Kerns Group Architects, P.C.


105 N, Maple Ave, Suite 200


Falls Church, Virginia


50'10' 20' 30' 40' 150' 200'


Warrenton, Virginia


100'
240'


Saint James' Episcopal Church & School








 


 





